
 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

Pension Fund AGM 2010 

 
 
THURSDAY, 22ND JULY, 2010 at 17:30 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD 
GREEN, N22 8LE. 
 
 
MEMBERS: Councillors Watson (Chair), Adje (Vice-Chair), Gibson, Stennett, Beacham, 

Jenks and Wilson 
 

 
IN ATTENDANCE: Howard Jones, Roger Melling, Earl Ramharacksingh and David Corran 

 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
 
1. WELCOME BY CLLR RICHARD WATSON, CHAIR OF PENSIONS COMMITTEE    
 
2. GUEST SPEAKER - BRIAN STRUTTON, NATIONAL SECRETARY GMB UNION - 

'AN AFFORDABLE AND SUSTAINABLE LGPS'    
 
3. START OF FORMAL BUSINESS BY CHAIR OF PENSIONS COMMITTEE    
 
4. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE    
 
 To note any apologies for absence. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

2 

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority 

at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and 
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, of when the 
interest becomes apparent. 
 
A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that 
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public would reasonably regard as 
so significant that it is likely to prejudice the member’s judgement of the public interest 
and if this interest affects their financial position or the financial position of a person or 
body as described in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the 
determining of any approval, consent, license, permission or registration in relation to 
them or any person or body described in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct. 
 

6. MINUTES OF THE LAST AGM  (PAGES 1 - 4)  
 
 To consider the minutes of the previous Pension Fund AGM, held on 23 July 2009, 

for approval and signing. 
 

7. ANNUAL REPORT 2009/10  (PAGES 5 - 8)  
 
 Presented by Cllr Richard Watson, Chair of the Pensions Committee.  

 
8. REPORT ON THE PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 

2010    
 
 Presentation by Julie Parker, Director of Corporate Resources. 

 
9. BALLOT FOR PENSIONER REPRESENTATIVE    
 
10. CLOSE BY CLLR RICHARD WATSON, CHAIR OF PENSIONS COMMITTEE    
 
 
 
Ken Pryor 
Deputy Head of Local Democracy and Member 
Services  
5th Floor 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Helen Jones 
Principal Committee Coordinator 
Tel: 020 8489 2615 
Fax: 020 8489 2660  
Email: Helen.jones@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Wednesday, 14 July 2010 

 
 
 



MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE 
THURSDAY, 23 JULY 2009 

 
Councillors C. Harris (Chair), Thompson (Vice-Chair), Beacham, Mallett and Winskill 

 
 
Apologies Councillors Cooke and Khan   

 
 
Also Present:  Gerald Almeroth (LB Haringey Chief Financial Officer), Stuart Young 

(Assistant Chief Executive People and Organisational Development)  
 
And approximately 100 stakeholders 
 

 

MINUTE 
NO. 

 
SUBJECT/DECISION 

ACTION 
BY 

 

PRPP104.
 

WELCOME BY COUNCILLOR CATHERINE HARRIS, CHAIR OF 
PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

 

 The Chair, Councillor Catherine Harris, welcomed those in attendance. 
 

 
 

PRPP105.
 

GUEST SPEAKER - TERRY CROSSLEY, HEAD OF PENSIONS DCLG  

 The Pension Fund Annual General Meeting (AGM) received a 
Powerpoint presentation from Terry Crossley (from the Workforce, Pay 
and Pensions Division of Communities and Local Government (CLG)) 
introducing the new Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) which 
began on 1st April 2008 and enforced viability, affordability and fairness. 
 
Mr Crossley assured members that despite the current economic climate 
the pension fund was secure and guaranteed by a parliamentary act and 
LGPS investments were expected to improve next year.   
 
The AGM noted that employer costs were fixed until 2010 but may rise in 
2011.  A valuation exercise would be conducted and there were plans to 
informally consult with ministers, local authorities and trade unions  
about how the scheme would be managed over the long term.   This 
could include consideration of whether a final salary scheme was right 
for local government, whether pension fund authorities should be larger 
and whether pension payments should be delivered on a sub-regional 
basis.  
 
In response to questions from stakeholders Mr Crossley emphasised 
that there were currently no specific plans to change any part of the 
LGPS but there would be open discussions with partners and trade 
unions about the possible options. 
 
In response to stakeholders concerns about the potential loss of the final 
salary scheme Mr Crossley explained that any changes made to the 
scheme would not affect the current entitlements of scheme members.   
 

 
 

PRPP106.
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

Agenda Item 6Page 1



MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE 
THURSDAY, 23 JULY 2009 

 

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Cooke and Khan. 
 

 
 

PRPP107.
 

START OF FORMAL BUSINESS BY CLLR CATHERINE HARRIS, 
CHAIR OF PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

 

 The Chair expressed thanks to Councillor Rahman Khan who chaired 
the Pensions Committee for many years and David Fishman for sitting 
on the Pensions Committee last year.   
 

 
 

PRPP108.
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 Councillors C.Harris, Mallett, Thompson and  Winskill all declared 
personal interests as they were members of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme. 
 

 
 

PRPP109.
 

MINUTES OF THE LAST AGM  

 RESOLVED that the minutes of the AGM held on 24th July 2008 be 
confirmed as an accurate record of the proceedings and signed by the 
Chair subject to the following amendment:  
 
Minute no. PRPP 24 – Report on the fund valuation at 31 March 2007  
 
The first line of the penultimate paragraph be amended to read: 
 
“Mr Almeroth was asked how the current sub-prime mortgage situation in 
USA was likely to affect the investment portfolio…”  
 

 
 

PRPP110.
 

THE ANNUAL REPORT  

 The Annual Report was presented and was approved by the meeting. 
 

 
 

PRPP111.
 

REPORT ON THE PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS FOR YEAR END 
31ST MARCH 2009 

 

  Gerald Almeroth, Chief Financial Officer, presented the Pension Fund 
Accounts for the year ending 31 March 2009 and the interim Fund 
valuation at 31 March 2009. 
 
Mr Almeroth informed attendees that the value of the Fund had 
significantly decreased to £488 million and funds managed by Fund 
Managers had decreased by 21.6% in the last year.  The Committee 
noted that Bernstein had ceased to be a Fund Manager in June 2009 
due to low performance and had been replaced by L&G on a temporary 
passive basis.  
 
Mr Almeroth assured the Committee that it was not unusual for pension 
funds to decrease in the current economic climate and emphasised the 
need to view investments over the long term. 
 
A large proportion of the Fund’s investments were in the UK and some 
overseas, however, the Council was not taking undue risks by investing 
in volatile countries.  An interim evaluation showed the funding level to 
be reduced to 53% in March 2009 but had risen to 58% by May 2009.   

 
 

Page 2



MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE 
THURSDAY, 23 JULY 2009 

 

 
The Council would consider the need for any changes in the employer 
contribution rate after the next 3-year actuarial evaluation in March 2010. 
 
The Chair invited questions from members of the Pension Fund. 
 
In response to a question from an attendee Mr Almeroth explained that 
whilst the Council had cash deposits in Icelandic Banks (90% of which 
was expected to be returned) none of this money was part of the 
Pensions Fund.  
 
In response to a question as to why there had been £32 million of cash 
investments, Mr Almeroth explained that investing the cash into banks 
with a 2% interest rate was a temporary measure prior to investment. 
While stock markets had been falling, this was not an issue for the fund. 
 
An attendee asked what say Pension Fund Members had about the 
potential rise of employee contributions.  Mr Almeroth stated that 
employee contributions were set in legislation and applied to everyone, 
therefore members were not able to influence the decision. 
 
In response to a question about the Fund Manager who recently ceased 
to work for the Pension Fund, Mr Almeroth explained that the contract 
did not entitle the Fund Manager to any compensation.  The Pension 
Fund operated on a one-week notice period for Fund Managers. 
 
Mr Almeroth was asked what the Investment Strategy Review involved.  
Mr Almeroth explained that the Council reviewed the Investment 
Strategy every three years in order to be clear about the risks and to 
discuss the global situation and the balance between shares, bonds and 
property, the number of fund managers required and to see if the 
Strategy should be changed to improve the chances of a better return.  
The next review and actuarial valuation would take place in 2010. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Thompson, Mr Almeroth 
explained that the Pensions Committee had signed-up to the UN 
Principals of Responsible Investment and Fund Managers were 
encouraged to use the policy when reviewing investments.  
Environmental impact on investments was also monitored and often 
meant a better share value. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Mallett, Mr Almeroth explained 
that the difference between the Bernstein and L&G Fund Managers was 
that Bernstein was part of active management funds (that actively tried 
to beat the market) whereas a Passive Manager, such as L&G, moved 
shares around to mirror the market for short periods of time.  Officers 
would look to move back to employing active Fund Managers next year. 
 

PRPP112.
 

BALLOT FOR PENSIONER MEMBER REPRESENTATIVE  

 David Corran the new pensioner member representative was introduced 
and pension scheme members could contact him about any issues 

 
 

Page 3



MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE 
THURSDAY, 23 JULY 2009 

 

concerning the pension scheme. 
 
The Committee expressed thanks to David Fishman for his contribution 
to the Pensions Committee in the past year. 
 

PRPP113.
 

CLOSE  

 The Chair thanked Councillors, officers and more than 100 members of 
the Pension Fund for attending. 
 
The meeting closed at 18:45 hrs. 
 

 
 

 
 
COUNCILLOR CATHERINE HARRIS 
CHAIR 

Page 4



2010
PENSIONS

Annual Report

www.haringey.gov.uk

Introduction from the Chair 

of Pensions Committee, 

Cllr Richard Watson

As the newly elected Chair of the 

Pensions Committee I am delighted 

to introduce the Annual Report for 

2009/10 through giving an overview of 

key activities over the past year as well as the Fund’s 

performance.

Following the downturn in global stock markets, 

which saw the Pension Fund’s investments decrease 

by 21.6% during 2008/09, there was positive news 

in 2009/10.  During the year the market value of the 

Pension Fund’s investments increased by 34.9% in 

absolute returns, which more than made up for the 

reduction in 2008/09.  

This increase was due to global markets positive 

expectations of recovery in economies around the 

world following the recessions seen by many in 2008.

Although the Pension Fund had a positive absolute 

return during 2009/10, the return was 3.1% below the 

benchmark the Pensions Committee set for the fund 

managers to achieve.  This has been of concern to the 

Pensions Committee. Fund managers have attended 

meetings of the Committee regularly throughout the 

year for committee members to challenge them and 

to understand the reasons for the underperformance.

The Pensions Committee took action early in 2009/10 

to remove Alliance Bernstein, the lowest performing 

manager, and moved the assets in June 2009 to a 

passive manager, Legal & General. A passive manager 

invests in line with a benchmark and therefore takes 

less risk. 

The Pensions Committee continues to monitor 

performance with the advice of the External 

Investment Adviser, Hewitts and an independent 

adviser to the Committee, Howard Jones. This 

supplements the advice of the Chief Financial Of�cer.

During the coming year the Committee will be 

undertaking a complete review of the investment 

strategy of the Pension Fund.  This will enable the 

Committee to reconsider the investment objectives 

for the Pension Fund and the level of risk the Pension 

Fund should be taking, so that an appropriate strategy 

can be put in place to achieve the objectives.

This is an opportune time to review investment 

strategy because the next formal triennial valuation 

will be conducted by the Pension Fund’s actuary 

in the next few months with the results expected in 

the autumn. The level of funding as a whole for the 

Fund was 77.7% as at end of March 2007 at the 

last triennial actuarial valuation. Although investment 

performance has been positive this year, the three 

year performance is not likely to have met the 

actuary’s assumption and will have had a negative 

impact on the funding level. The Committee will work 

with of�cers and the Pension Fund’s actuary, Hymans 

Robertson, to determine the best way to improve the 

funding level for the future.

As part of the Pension Fund’s governance 

arrangements, representatives of pensioners, active 

members and of admitted and scheduled bodies took 

part in Committee meetings throughout the year.  A 

new pensioner representative will be elected at the 

forthcoming AGM on 22nd July 2010.

For the �rst time, the external auditors Grant 

Thornton, undertook a separate audit of the Pension 

Fund accounts for 2008/09.  Previously the audit had 

been part of the main Council’s audit.  Grant Thornton 

reported to the Pensions Committee in September 

2009 that the accounts were fairly presented and 

no material changes were required to the draft set 

prepared by of�cers.

Following this, a formal annual report was prepared 

in accordance with the new requirements of the 

Local Government Pension Scheme regulations and 

published on 1st December 2010.

I am looking forward to the challenging year ahead 

and am con�dent of being able to report to you 

next year on some positive actions the Committee 

has taken in meeting these challenges.

Cllr Richard Watson

Chair of Pensions Committee 

Agenda Item 7Page 5



2010
PENSIONS

Annual Report
Pensions Committee 

at 31/3/2010

Cllr C Harris (Chair)  

Cllr T Mallett  

Cllr M Cooke  

Cllr E Jones   

Cllr D Beacham  

Cllr R Wilson  

Cllr D Winskill  

Cllr M Whyte  

D Corran (Pensioner representative)  

R Melling (Employee representative)

E Ramharacksingh (Admitted & 

Scheduled Bodies representative)

Secretary to the Committee

Head of Local Democracy and 

Member Services

Scheme Administrator

Chief Financial Of�cer

Actuary

Hymans Robertson

Investment Managers

Alliance Bernstein (until May 2009)

Capital International

Fidelity

ING

Legal & General

Custodian

Northern Trust

Investment Consultants

Hewitt Associates Limited

Independent Advisor to the 

Pensions Committee  

Howard Jones

Bankers

Royal Bank of Scotland

Legal advisors

Head of Legal Services

AVC providers

Clerical and Medical

Equitable Life Assurance Society

Prudential Assurance

Internal Auditors

Deloitte & Touche

External Auditors

Grant Thornton UK LLP

Pension Fund Account Summary

2009/10

£M

2008/09

£M

Employee contributions 10.602 10.258

Employer contributions 35.265 33.981

Transfer values received

(where staff change employers)
7.003 2.562

Investment income 11.996 18.142

Other Income   -    -   

Total income    64.866 64.943

Pensions and other bene�ts 29.405  28.846 

Transfer values paid 6.324  6.603 

Investment management 

expenses
3.058  3.074 

Other expenses 0.730  0.682 

Total expenditure 39.517   39.205 

Surplus for investment 25.349  25.738 

Movement of funds

Opening net assets 487.513   605.103 

Surplus for investment 25.349   25.738 

Increase/decrease (-) in value of 

assets 151.010 (143.328)

Closing net assets 663.872 487.513

Where Fund is invested
%

United Kingdom 64.5

Europe 12.5

USA and Canada 10.1

Japan 5.7

Other 7.2

Fund Membership
2008/09 2009/10

Actives 6820 6787

Pensioners 4770 4890

Dependants 1001 1002

Deferred 6122 6473

Page 6



2010
PENSIONS

Annual Report
Top Ten Shares

Security
Percentage 

of Equities

Market

Value 

£’000

1. BP 2.3 2,763

2. Lloyds Banking 

Group
2.2 2,694

3. Shell 2.1 2,566

4. Vodafone 2.0 2,476

5. SMC Corp 1.5 1,797

6. Barclays 1.4 1,761

7. Roche Holdings 1.3 1,583

8. HSBC 1.3 1,544

9. E.On 1.2 1,514

10. NTT Docomo 1.1 1,405

Performance Indicators 2009/10

Retirement Benefits  Target met 

Target (5 days) 96.40%

Death Benefits 

Target (20 days) 94.65%

Starters

Target 30 days 99.29%

Transfers In and Out

Target (20 days) 89.23%

Employing Bodies

with active members

Alexandra Palace Trading Company

College of North East London

Enterprise Ltd

Europa Workspace Solutions Ltd

Fortismere School

Greig City Academy

Haringey Age Concern

Haringey Citizens Advice Bureau

Haringey Council

Homes for Haringey

John Loughborough School

Mittie Ltd     (Ceased 6th April 2009

ONtime Parking Solutions

RM Education Ltd

TLC Ltd

Urban Futures (London) Ltd

Market Value of Investment as at 

31.03.2010
Percentage 

of Fund

%

Market

Value

£’000

U.K. Equities 5.5 36,339

Overseas equities 12.9 85,728

OEICs 33.6 222,390

Fixed interest 

securities 2.5 16,335

Pooled investments 37.2 246,806

Index linked 

securities 2.6 17,508

Cash 5.5 36,199

Other 0.2 1,397

Totals 100 662,702

Movement of Fund

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

Net asset of Fund

2003
2004

2005
2006

2007
2008

2009
2010

£m

Page 7



2010
PENSIONS

Annual Report
AN AFFORDABLE LGPS

‘We are within the next couple of years going to face 

significant cuts in public expenditure. Increasing 

employer contributions, funded by the taxpayer, is not 

realistic or equitable.

To ensure public pension funds remain sustainable in 

the longer term that leaves three choices – increasing 

employee contributions, increasing retirement ages, 

changing the benefit structure particularly how benefits 

and pensions are indexed’. (Sir Anthony Meyer Chair 

London Pension Fund Authority Feb.2010)

These remarks were made at a recent conference held 

in London. The objective of the conference was to 

bring together a range of stakeholders to discuss the 

sustainability of the LGPS and reach a consensus on 

options for change.  

A key speaker at the conference was Brian Stratton 

the National Secretary of the GMB Union. Brian has 

accepted an invitation to be the guest speaker at this 

year’s Pension Fund AGM. He will bring a perspective 

on how the Trades Unions working together with 

employers and the government can best meet the 

challenge of reforming the LGPS. The date of the 

AGM is 22nd July 2010. 

This year Pensions Of�cers will be at the Civic Centre 

from 4pm to answer general questions about the 

LGPS. There will also be a representative from DWP 

who will assist with queries about State Scheme 

Bene�ts and a representative from our AVC Providers.

AGM Agenda

Welcome by Chair of Pensions Committee Cllr 

Richard Watson

Guest Speaker Brian Stratton National Secretary 

GMB Union

Minutes of the last AGM

Report on the Pension Fund Accounts 

Ballot for Pensioner Member Representative

Close by Chair of Pensions Committee

A sandwich buffet will be available from 5pm

Venue is the Civic Centre, Council Chamber N22 8LE

New Legislation 2009/10

Summary details of new scheme regulations are 

published on the Pensions Web Page and on 

Harinet (see Contacts below ). There were important 

changes to dependant’s bene�ts which are 

summarised below:

Partners Pensions

Reference to a partner’s pension in the Annual 

Bene�ts Statements issued to active members in 

June this year refers to dependent partner pensions. 

This includes a spouse, a civil partner or a nominated 

cohabiting partner.

Dependants of Registered Civil Partnerships

Dependant’s bene�ts for members in a Civil 

Partnership were based on membership from 

6th April 1988. This has now changed so that 

all membership will count in the calculation of a 

dependant’s bene�t. This only applies if you were 

contributing to the LGPS on or after 1st April 2008. 

See CONTACTS below for links to more information 

and a de�nition of Dependants Bene�ts.

Nominated Co-habiting Partners

Dependant’s bene�ts for co-habiting nominated partners 

are restricted to membership from 6th April 1988. You 

can elect to buy in pre April 1988 membership 

but this must be done by 31st March 2011.

Equitable Life Compensation

The government has announced its intention to 

compensate contributors to Equitable Life AVCs affected 

by the collapse of that company. More information will be 

issued when the details are published.

CONTACTS:

Pensions Team: 020 8489 5916

Fax:                    020 8489  3986

Of�ce : Alexandra House, 10 Station Road, 

Wood Green N22 7TR

Email: Pensions.Mailbox@haringey.gov.uk

Web page: www.haringey.gov.uk/pensionfund

Online guide: www.lgps.org.uk

Harinet Personnel >Pay and Pensions>Local 

Government Pension Scheme

This is printed on recycled paer. When you 

have �nished with it please recycle.

Published by Haringey Council’s 

Page 8


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the last AGM
	7 Annual Report 2009/10

